

**BY-LAWS OF MISSION CANYON ASSOCIATION**  
**(Including revisions Jan/Feb 2001)**

ARTICLE I

Name and Objective of Association

**Section 1.** Name of the Association. The name of this corporation is “MISSION CANYON ASSOCIATION” (hereinafter the “Association”).

**Section 2.** Objective. The objective of this association shall be to preserve, maintain and improve Mission Canyon as a primarily residential area of beauty and charm.

ARTICLE II

Offices

The principal place of business and office of the corporation shall be the library room of the Museum of Natural History, 2559 Puesta del Sol, in the City of Santa Barbara, County of Santa Barbara, State of California, or such other places as the Board of Directors may designate.

ARTICLE III

Seal

The corporate seal shall be in such form as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV

Members

**Section 1.** Individual Members. Membership in the Association shall be open to all persons 18 years of age or older who:

1. Are owners of record of any real property in Mission Canyon, or
2. Are legal residents of Mission Canyon.

**Section 2.** Application. Any person meeting the qualifications set forth in Section 1 of this Article may apply for membership in the Association by completing and submitting an application, in the form provided from time to time by the Association for such purpose, and by paying the requisite annual membership fee provided in Section 4 of this Article.

**Section 3.** Furnishing Evidence of Qualification. A person shall not be entitled to exercise the rights of a member until such time as his or her application and payment of annual membership fee has been made and, if requested by the Association, the person has provided the Association with evidence satisfactory to the Association of the qualification for membership as provided under Section 1 of this Article.

**Section 4.** Shared Membership. Membership may be individual, or shared by more than one member of a household. Each membership shall be entitled to only one vote in the association.

**Section 5.** Voting and Majority Rule. On each issue or matter submitted to a vote of the members each Individual Membership in good standing as of the record date for such vote shall be entitles to cast one (1) vote. If a quorum is present at a meeting, the affirmative vote of the majority of the voting power of the Association present in person or by proxy and voting on any issue or matter (other than the election of directors) shall be the act of the members, unless the vote of a greater number is required by these Bylaws. In the case of elections for directors, the candidates receiving the highest number of votes, up to the numbers of directors to be elected, shall be elected to the vacant director positions.

For the purpose of this Article the association area is defined to comprise the geographic area of Santa Barbara County lying within the “Mission Canyon Specific Plan Area” adopted by the County from time to time.

## ARTICLE V Members Meetings

**Section 1.** General Meetings. All meetings of the members shall be held at the principal place of business of the corporation, or at such other place as the Board of Directors may from time to time fix.

**Section 2.** Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the members of the corporation shall be held on such date, and at such hour, in the month of April of each year as the Board of Directors may designate, for the purpose of the election of directors, and the transaction of such other business as may lawfully come before the meeting. Notice of such annual meeting shall be given to each member of record appearing on the books of the corporation, by depositing in the United State Post Office at Santa Barbara, California, a notice in writing addressed to each member at his/**her** address appearing on the books of the corporation, at least eight days prior to such meeting. Said notice shall be given by the Secretary and shall state the time and place of the holding of such meeting. The purpose of said meeting may, but need not be set forth in the call or

notice, and any business which may be lawfully transacted by the members may be transacted at any annual meeting.

### **Section 3.**

**Special Meetings.** Special meetings of the members other than those provided for or regulated by statute may be called by the Board of Directors, or by the President. In addition, should a written petition requesting a special meeting of the members signed by at least twenty-five of such members, be presented either to the President or the Secretary, the President shall forthwith call such special meeting of the members. Notice of any special meeting shall be given to each member of record appearing on the books of the corporation by depositing in the United States Post Office at Santa Barbara, California, a notice in writing addressed to each member at his address appearing on the books of the corporation, at least three days prior to such meeting. Said notice shall be given by the Secretary and shall state the time and place of the holding of such meeting. The purpose of said meeting shall be set forth in the call or notice, and any business which may be lawfully transacted by the members may be transacted at a special meeting.

**Section 4. Quorum.** Twenty-five members of the corporation, present in person or by proxy, shall be requisite for and shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the members for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided by statute.

## ARTICLE VI Voting Rights

**Section 1.** In all matters which shall come before the members of this corporation, and in all corporate matters each member shall have one vote. Voting may be by proxy dated for the day of the meeting, signed by a member in good standing, and delivered to the Secretary by the member named in the proxy as authorized to cast the vote for the signer.

**Section 2.** In all matters which shall come before the members of this corporation the vote of a majority of the members present and entitled to vote shall be determinative of the matter voted upon, except as may be otherwise required by law. Voting shall be by voice, or by secret ballot, in the discretion of the presiding officer.

## ARTICLE VII Membership Dues

Annual membership dues shall be paid, in the amount specified each year by the Board of Directors. Dues shall be due and payable on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of January of each year (*rev Jan/Feb 2001*)

## ARTICLE VIII Directors

**Section 1.** The Board of Directors shall consist of a minimum of 12 to a maximum of 15 persons, each of whom is a Member of the Association whose membership is in good standing. At each annual meeting roughly one-third of the directors shall be elected for terms of two years. (*rev Jan/Feb 2001*)

**Section 2.** The Board of Directors shall have the management and control of the business of the corporation and shall employ such agents and servants as they may deem advisable, and fix the rates of compensation of all agents and employees. They shall have full and complete power to determine the method or plan upon which the powers of this corporation shall be exercised, and may do everything necessary and convenient in their discretion to accomplish the purpose of this corporation. They are authorized to do and perform all acts stated in the Articles of Incorporation in that clause thereof giving the purposes for which this corporation is formed and to perform and transact all other business and acts which this corporation by the laws of the State of California is permitted to transact and perform.

**Section 3.** Whenever any vacancy shall occur in the Board of Directors by death, resignation or otherwise, the same shall be filled without undue delay by a majority vote of the remaining members of the board. The person so chosen shall hold the office for the unexpired term of the director he/she replaces. (*rev Jan/Feb 2001*)

**Section 4.** The Board of Directors may, in their discretion, nominate and appoint one or more persons as honorary directors of this corporation. Honorary directors shall have no vote at, and shall not be entitled as right to notice of, any meeting of the Board of Directors, regular or special, nor shall any honorary director be counted in determining the presence of a quorum of the Board of Directors.

**Section 5.** Limitation on Terms. Except as provided in this section, a person who has served on the Board for three (3) full consecutive terms of two (2) years each may not be elected or appointed as a director until one (1) year after the person's last term in

office. If a person is appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy on the Board with a remaining term of more than one and one-half (1 1/2) years, the person shall be deemed to have served for the full term for purposes of the forgoing provision. Limitation on Terms in no way precludes a member from serving on, or chair, committees or otherwise actively participating in Association activities. *(rev Jan/Feb 2001)*

## ARTICLE IX

### Meetings of the Board of Directors

**Section 1.** The Board of Directors shall meet at least one a month at the office or principal place of business of the corporation, or at such other place as the Board of Directors may from time to time fix, on such date and hour in each month as the Board of Directors may from time to time fix. Written notice of all regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be mailed (and emailed if appropriate) to each director by the Secretary at least five days before the meeting, by depositing in the U.S. Post Office at Santa Barbara such written or printed notice addressed to each of the directors at their addresses appearing on the books of the corporation. *(rev Jan/Feb 2001)*

**Section 2.** Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or any four Directors, and notice of the time and place thereof shall be given in person or by telephone or email or fax at least twenty-four hours before the time set for such meeting, or written or printed notice addressed to each of the Directors at their addresses appearing on the books of the corporation, at least forty-eight hours before such meeting. The purpose of said meeting shall be set forth in said notice, and any business which may be lawfully transacted by the Board of Directors may be transacted at any special meeting. *(rev Jan/Feb 2001)*

**Section 3.** More than one-half of the Directors shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Board. *(rev Jan/Feb 2001)*

In all matters which shall come before the Board of Directors the vote of a majority of the Directors present shall be determinative of the matter voted upon, except as may be otherwise required by law or in these by-laws. Voting shall be by voice, or by secret ballot, in the discretion of the presiding officer.

**Section 4.** Directors' meeting both regular and special shall be open to the members.

**Section 5.** Any director of this corporation who is absent from three or more consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall no longer remain or be a director of, or hold any office in, this corporation, unless the Board of Directors, for good cause, shall in its discretion otherwise determine.

## ARTICLE X Officers

**Section 1.** The officers of the corporation shall consist of a president, a vice president, a secretary and a treasurer, and such other officers as the Board of Directors may provide for. Any two or more offices of this corporation may be held by the same person, except those of president and secretary. No officer or director of this corporation shall receive any compensation for his/**her** services in such capacity.

**Section 2.** The officers of the corporation shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The first election shall be held immediately after the organization of the Board of Directors immediately following the incorporation of this corporation. Subsequent elections shall be held at the meeting of the Board of directors next following the annual meeting.

**Section 3.** In case of the death, resignation or removal from office of any officer of this corporation, the Board of directors shall elect his successor, who shall hold his office by like tenure for the unexpired term.

**Section 4.** The president shall be chief executive officer of the corporation and shall preside at all meetings of the members and directors; he/**she** shall have the general management of the business of the corporation, and such general powers as are usually vested in the office of the president of a corporation. He/**she** shall have such powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by these by-laws or by the Board of Directors.

**Section 5.** The vice president, in the absence or disability of the president, shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the president; and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by these by-laws or by the Board of Directors.

**Section 6.** The Secretary shall attend all sessions of the Board and all meetings of the members and record all votes and minutes for all proceedings in a book to be kept for that purpose. He/**she** shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all regular and special meetings of the members and Directors, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by these by-laws or by the Board of Directors.

**Section 7.** The Treasurer shall have such powers as are usually vested in the treasurer of a corporation, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by these by-laws or by the Board of Directors.

**Section 8.** In case of the absence of any officer of the corporation, or for any other reason that the Board may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may delegate, for the time being, the powers, or duties, or any of them, of such officer to any other officer, or to any director.

## ARTICLE XI Amendments

These by-laws may be amended, added to or altered by a vote of nine **(two-thirds)** directors at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose, when allowed by law, or by the vote of a majority of the members present and entitled to vote, at any general or special meeting duly called for that purpose, or by the written assent of a majority of the members of this corporation. *(rev Jan/Feb 2001)*